

HOME-ARP ALLOCATION PLAN

City of Chula Vista

Housing and Homeless Services Director Stacey Kurz

Contents

Executive Summary	2
Consultation	4
Consultation Process	4
Consultation Participation and Feedback	4
Summary of feedback received from consultation	5
Public Participation	5
Public participation process description	6
Efforts to broaden public participation	6
Summary of comments and recommendations received	6
Summary of comments or recommendations not accepted	6
Needs Assessment and Gaps Analysis	7
Needs Assessment	7
Current resources available	9
Unmet housing and service needs of qualifying population.	9
Gaps within the current shelter, housing inventory, and service delivery system	11
Priority needs for qualifying populations	11
Need and Gap Determination Process	11
HOME-ARP Activities	11
Method(s)that will be used for soliciting applications	11
Administration of eligible activities	12
HOME-ARP funds administered by a subrecipient or contractor	12
HOME-ARP funds distribution	12
Plan rationale	12
HOME-ARP Production Housing Goals	13
Preferences	13
Referral Methods	13
Limitations	14
HOME-ARP Refinancing Guidelines	14

Executive Summary

The American Rescue Plan (ARP) provides \$5 billion to assist individuals or households who are homeless, at risk of homelessness, and other vulnerable populations, by providing housing, rental assistance, supportive services, and non-congregate shelter, to reduce homelessness and increase housing stability across the country. These grant funds are administered through HUD's HOME Investment Partnerships Program (HOME). As an entitlement jurisdiction for a fiscal year 2021 HOME program allocation, the City of Chula Vista is also eligible to receive a HOME-ARP grant allocation for the fiscal year 2021 program year. Using the same HOME Program allocation formula HUD has determined that the City of Chula Vista will be receiving an allocation of \$3,139,777.

Grants funds must be used to benefit individuals who are eligible according to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) HOME-ARP guidelines. HUD has established four qualifying populations that the use of these funds must primarily benefit:

- Homeless, as defined in section 103(a) of the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act (42 U.S.C. 11302(a));
- At-risk of homelessness, as defined in section 401(1) of the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act (42 U.S.C. 11360(1));
- Fleeing, or attempting to flee, domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, stalking, or human trafficking, as defined by the Secretary;
- In other populations where providing supportive services or assistance under section 212(a) of the Act (42 U.S.C. 12742(a)) would prevent the family's homelessness or would serve those with the greatest risk of housing instability.

Along with these qualifying populations HUD also determined four eligible activities:

- Production or Preservation of Affordable Housing;
- Tenant-Based Rental Assistance (TBRA);
- Supportive Services, including services defined at 24 CFR 578.53(e), homeless prevention services, and housing counseling;
- Purchase and Development of Non-Congregate Shelter. These structures can remain in use as non-congregate shelter or can be converted to: 1) emergency shelter under the Emergency Solutions Grant program; 2) permanent housing under the Continuum of Care; or 3) affordable housing under the HOME Program.

HOME-ARP funding is a subset of the general HOME Investment Partnership program which aims to expand housing options for low-income households. The HOME program is the federal government's largest grant designated to create new affordable housing units. The City receives approximately \$900,000 in HOME funding annually, which is primarily allocated towards Tenant-Based Rental Assistance (TBRA).

The use of HOME-ARP funds is critical for Chula Vista at a time when the need for affordable housing and housing assistance is greater than ever. The City currently has an annual population growth of 12.5 percent, outpacing San Diego County's total growth rate of 7.8 percent. Overall, Chula Vista's population is expected to increase by 40 percent by 2050. This rapid growth brings added pressure to existing housing challenges and homelessness within the City. Low- and moderate-income households are disproportionately impacted by this pressure, compared to those earning higher income; thus, there is a high need for housing assistance targeted at the 19,085 households earning at or below 80 percent of AMI experiencing housing problems. In addition, special needs groups like victims of domestic violence, disabled individuals, and those at risk of homelessness are more affected by these problems, as they tend to need supportive services in addition to affordable housing.

As of 2020 16,770 low- and moderate-income renter households in Chula Vista were experiencing overpayment for rent, in excess of 30% of their household incomes. 10,230 of these households experience a cost burden of more than 50% of household income. Overall, 48% of low- and moderate-income households in the City are defined as cost-burdened. These numbers translate to a significant number of households who are at-risk of homelessness within the City of Chula Vista.

Families with incomes below the poverty level, typically those households with extremely-low and very-low incomes, are at greatest risk of becoming homeless and typically require special programs to assist them in meeting their rent and mortgage obligations to prevent homelessness. The 2020 Census estimated 9.6 percent of the residents in Chula Vista as living in poverty. In comparison, the County of San Diego had 10.3 percent. Individuals with a disability in Chula Vista experience poverty at 16.7 percent. These households need assistance with housing subsidies, utility and other living expense subsidies, as well as other supportive services.

Victims of domestic violence are often severely impacted by these problems as well, as their incomes may drastically change if they must leave their job for safety and lose a partner, whom they may be sharing expenses with. According to the 2020 Point In Time Count for the County of San Diego, it is estimated that nearly 1,080 homeless adults were a victim of domestic violence at some point in the past, and an estimated 600 adult domestic violence victims were unsheltered on the night of the count. Shelters contracted through the City using HUD funds currently house around 389 victims of domestic violence, but the housing needs for this population are also expected to increase drastically.

The City surveyed and consulted with multiple community partners and members of the public to shape goals and objectives for HOME-ARP funding. Overall, this effort has influenced the City to prioritize production and preservation of affordable housing units. This is largely based on the perceived needs explained through outreach efforts and the City's own gaps in existing funding opportunities and services.

Based on the information above, the City's priority housing need for qualifying populations is the development and preservation of affordable housing units. This includes housing units included in permanent supportive housing with wraparound services. The City of Chula Vista will use the \$3,139,777 HOME-ARP allocation specifically for the development of permeant supportive housing units.

Consultation

Consultation Process

The City of Chula Vista consulted with relevant agencies and stakeholders that serve each of the qualifying populations within the jurisdiction and surrounding areas. These organizations include homeless service providers; domestic violence survivor service providers; substance use treatment providers; the local Continuum of Care; a local homelessness taskforce; veteran's service providers; a public housing agency; and an organization that addresses fair housing, civil rights, and the needs of persons with disabilities. Providers were chosen based on services provided as well as ensuring there was a representative organization for each of the qualifying populations to be served, as shown in Table 1.

There were two surveys developed and distributed to solicit feedback on spending priorities for HOME-ARP funds, one at the beginning of 2022 and another in the later part of the year. The surveys were issued to the public as well as the above-mentioned providers through the San Diego Regional Taskforce on Homelessness. Additionally, a public presentation was given at the November 30, 2022 meeting of the San Diego Regional Taskforce on Homelessness meeting.

Consultation Participation and Feedback

Table 1 - Organizations consulted and feedback provided

Agency/Org Consulted	Type of Agency/Org	Method of Consultation	QP Served	Feedback
Interfaith Shelter Network of San Diego	Homeless Service Provider	Survey and public meeting	QP #1	Permanent supportive housing is needed
SBCS Corporation	DV Service Provider	Survey and public meeting	QP #2, #3 and #4	Permanent supportive housing is needed with wrap around services
Alpha Project	Homeless Service Provider	Survey and public meeting	QP #1	Permanent supportive housing is needed

McAllister Institute	Substance Use Service Provider	Survey and public meeting	QP #1	Permanent supportive housing is needed
San Diego Regional Taskforce on Homelessness	CoC	Survey and public meeting	QP #1	Permanent supportive housing is needed
South Bay Homeless Alliance	Homelessness Taskforce	Survey and public meeting	QP # 1 and #4	Permanent supportive housing is needed
Veterans Village of San Diego	Veteran's Group	Weekly meetings and coordinated outreach	Veterans	Growing need for additional sheltering for homeless veterans
San Diego Housing Commission	Public Housing Agency	Survey	QP #1, #2, and #4	The City's goals of producing more affordable housing aligns with their regional approach to solving displacement and preventing homelessness.
CSA San Diego	Fair Housing Organization	Survey	QP #4	Permanent supportive housing is needed.

Summary of feedback received from consultation

Nearly every consulted agency and service provider indicated a high need for supportive services and affordable housing. There is an abundance of need in the region for permanent supportive housing that combines the services that individuals need as well as housing that is affordable at individual income levels. The current housing shortage combined with a lack of available case management puts our vulnerable populations at risk even more than they already are.

Public Participation

The section below describes the public participation process, including information about and the dates of the public comment period and public hearing(s) held during the development of the plan:

- Date(s) of public notice: 02/04/2022 and 11/11/2022
- Public comment period: start date 11/25/2022 end date 12/25/2022
- Date(s) of public hearing: 2/15/2022 & 2/14/2023

Public participation process description

Information on HOME-ARP funds and their upcoming availability to the City of Chula Vista was made known to the public through a public participation process that follows the City's Citizen Participation Plan. Additionally, public notices for comment and hearings were made available once at the beginning of 2022 and again later in the same year.

A 20-question survey was developed to solicit public feedback on eligible uses and spending priorities of the allocated HOME-ARP funds. This survey was made available through the City of Chula Vista social media on November 3, 2022, and shared with relevant stakeholders as well, as mentioned in the consultation summary.

The official public comment period began with a publication in the Star News on November 25, 2022, and will end on December 25, 2022. The cost allocation plan will also be included in the Staff report for a public hearing to be held on February, 14th, 2023 therefore any feedback received after the respective Council meeting will be incorporated into the cost allocation plan, as applicable.

Efforts to broaden public participation

The City's decisions to fund projects that directly benefit the residents of Chula Vista can only be accomplished through a thorough and transparent citizen participation process. Consistent with the Citizen Participation Plan, the City of Chula Vista continues to increase presence and promotion efforts on social media and in local news agencies. The City's intention is that this increased engagement through social media platforms will increase resident and stakeholder participation in the City's efforts to provide informed funding decisions. The goal with this approach is to use as many means as possible to solicit public and partner-agency input on the decision-making processes with these funding opportunities.

Summary of comments and recommendations received

Overall, comments and survey results largely favored development of affordable housing and permanent supportive services for individuals experiencing homelessness. Survey respondents requested additional resources for permanent supportive housing and favored non-congregate housing options. Chula Vista residents recognize the growing need of affordable housing leveraged with supportive services that can assist the most vulnerable populations in our City and ultimately benefit the City as a whole. All Chula Vista residents are affected by the poor or inadequate living conditions that many of our low-income residents are experiencing, and the development of affordable housing can provide a dignified solution.

Summary of comments or recommendations not accepted

The City of Chula Vista did not reject any public comments or recommendations.

Needs Assessment and Gaps Analysis

Needs Assessment

There is a growing need for affordable housing and supportive services in the City of Chula Vista. As the City's population grows over the next two decades, existing housing challenges are expected to increase. This includes an increase in the number of homeless households and households at risk of becoming homeless. Detailed below are inventories on the City's current housing needs and a gap analysis.

In August of 2021 the City conducted its own count of unsheltered persons. The August 18th, 2021, count totaled 792 persons meeting the definitions of homeless. Of these 792 individuals, 453 were sheltered and 339 were unsheltered. The unsheltered population of Chula Vista included 239 males, 89 females and 11 individuals of other or unknown gender. 50% of all homeless individuals had been homeless for 3 years or more and 55% percent of these individuals were experiencing homelessness for their first time. These are not being used for the gap analysis below, we are instead using the Federal Point in Time Count data, which is lower than our local count.

Table 2: Homeless Needs Inventory and Gap Analysis

Homeless													
	Current Inventory				Но	meless F	ess Population		Gap Analysis				
	Far	nily	Adult	s Only	Vets	Family	Adult	Vets	Victims	Far	nily	Adult	s Only
	# of Beds	# of Units	# of Beds	# of Units	# of Beds	HH (at least 1 child)	HH (w/o child)		of DV	# of Beds	# of Units	# of Beds	# of Units
Emergency Shelter	0	0	95	0	0								
Transitional Housing	0	0	121	0	0								
Permanent Supportive Housing	0	0	0	0	0								
Other Permanent Housing	0	0	0	0	0								
Sheltered Homeless						81	5	17	0				
Unsheltered Homeless						6	200	0	0				
Current Gap										0	0	93	0

Table 3: Housing Needs Inventory and Gap Analysis

	Non-Homeless		
	Current Inventory	Level of Need	Gap Analysis
	# of Units	# of Households	# of Households
Total Rental Units	34,883		
Rental Units Affordable to HH at 30% AMI (At- Risk of Homelessness)	0		
Rental Units Affordable to HH at 50% AMI (Other Populations)	2,179		
0%-30% AMI Renter HH w/ 1 or more severe housing problems (At-Risk of Homelessness)		9,200	
30%-50% AMI Renter HH w/ 1 or more severe housing problems (Other Populations)		9,170	
Current Gaps			18,370

Data Sources: 1. 2021 American Community Survey Estimates (ACS); 2. 2015-2019 Comprehensive Housing Affordability Strategy (CHAS); 3. Chula Vista Housing Element 2021-2029

Qualifying populations size and demographic information

Homeless as defined in 24 CFR 91.5

As of the 2022 Point in Time Count, there were 309 homeless individuals staying in both sheltered and unsheltered conditions.

At Risk of Homelessness as defined in 24 CFR 91.5

As of 2020, there were 12,015 households in the City making less than 30% AMI. Of these, 9,755 households, or 81%, had a housing problem such as a cost burden greater than 30%, more than one person per room, or lacking facilities like plumbing or a kitchen.

Fleeing, or Attempting to Flee, Domestic Violence, Dating Violence, Sexual Assault, Stalking, or Human Trafficking, as defined by HUD in the Notice

1,257 residents of Chula Vista contacted SBCS Corporation in fiscal year 2022 for specific housing needs. SBCS is Chula Vista's primary resource for victims of domestic violence and partner in providing services to other low-income populations. SBCS currently operates two domestic violence shelters within the City.

Other populations requiring services or housing assistance to prevent homelessness and other populations at greatest risk of housing instability, as defined by HUD in the Notice

The City serves many households who have previously been qualified as homeless and who are currently housed due to temporary financial assistance or services. This includes 29 individuals currently receiving Tenant-Based Rental Assistance.

According to the City's 2020-2025 Consolidated Plan there were 110 veterans currently receiving Housing Vouchers, with 14 being elderly and 33 being disabled.

Current resources available

The City of Chula Vista currently employs a hotel/motel voucher program for individuals in need of a transitional living solution as they move into a permanent housing unit. Additionally, there is an active HOME-funded tenant-based rental assistance (TBRA) program available for low-income households which helps provide a temporary hand-up for 12-24 months as households achieve self-sufficiency. There are also 20 permanent supportive units at the Casa Anita project with more units currently being planned for production within the next few years. The City also continues to monitor and keep the existing affordability covenants for 2,179 units across the City, with more affordability restricted units in development. In addition to each of these efforts, the City of Chula Vista is also in the process of constructing a non-congregate 60-bed bridge shelter for homeless individuals that are working towards a permanent housing solution. The shelter will contain wrap-around services for each program participant as well as key infrastructure to serve as a navigation center to provide key resources.

Unmet housing and service needs of qualifying population.

Homeless as defined in 24 CFR 91.5

Chula Vista leverages several resources for individuals living in homelessness, however there are still many unmet housing and service needs, paired with a growing homeless population. As an entitlement jurisdiction, the City receives approximately \$400,000 is Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) funding each year. ESG funds in Chula Vista are primarily used for homeless prevention, homeless shelter operations, and shelter rehabilitation projects. The City also utilizes its Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) allocation for similar purposes including homeless services and a hotel/motel voucher program. Despite the use of these funds for homeless services and shelters, there are still major gaps in the availability of permanent supportive housing and affordable units for this population. As many as 93 additional shelter

beds are needed to house homeless individuals. This gap is expected to rise as the homeless population in Chula Vista increases over the next five years.

At Risk of Homelessness as defined in 24 CFR 91.5

There are not enough affordable units throughout the City to assist individuals and families at risk of homelessness. Approximately 14,885 households experience a housing cost burden greater than 50% of their household income. Currently, the City maintains covenants restricting the affordability of around 3,110 rental units in the city. With an increasing population and increased costs for renter and homeowners, this number is not expected to be sufficient for the number of households in Chula Vista in need of more affordable housing. As many as 12,261 affordable units may be needed to serve this population.

Fleeing, or Attempting to Flee, Domestic Violence, Dating Violence, Sexual Assault, Stalking, or Human Trafficking, as defined by HUD in the Notice

Domestic Violence (DV) is one of the top crimes in the City of Chula Vista. It is the number two type of police call for service. Each year, there are more than 3,700 incidents, with about 1,200 of those incidents resulting in actual crimes. Assuming each of the crime calls referenced is an unduplicated household, it is likely that approximately 1,200 households in Chula Vista may need to relocate, possibly with minor children and may require temporary housing assistance. According to the City's last Consolidated Annual Performance Evaluation Report (CAPER), the South Bay Community Services Family Violence Program assisted 513 victims of domestic violence, which indicates that many victims may not seeking help and/or there may be a barrier to obtaining legal help.

While the City partners with SBCS Corporation on the operation of two domestic violence shelters, there is a need for more transitional housing and permanent supportive shelter options for this population.

Other populations requiring services or housing assistance to prevent homelessness and other populations at greatest risk of housing instability as defined by HUD in the Notice

The number of households in this category is currently growing in Chula Vista. Households previously qualified as "homeless" may be currently housed through the following options:

 Chula Vista Seven - a project consisting of seven scattered housing units designated for extremely low-income households [0 – 30% of area median income ("AMI")], which are now occupied by previously homeless families, who are finding their way back to self-sufficiency.

- Hotel/Motel Voucher Program Understanding the critical need of emergency shelter beds, an alternative was created with voucher program funding, providing up to 28 days of a safe space for our Homeless Outreach Team and clients to work together towards stabilization.
- Tenant-Based Rental Assistance Program For those requiring longer term housing assistance, HOME funds were earmarked to provide up to twenty-four months of rental assistance.

Gaps within the current shelter, housing inventory, and service delivery system

Additional Characteristics Refining the definition of "Other Populations":

The City's Consolidated Plan does not provide additional characteristics associated with instability and an increased risk of homelessness, therefore there are no additional characteristics refining the definition of the fourth "other" qualifying populations.

Priority needs for qualifying populations

Based on feedback from community partners and the public, the City has determined that in addition to affordable housing the greatest needs for all four qualifying populations are more wrap around services such as mental health care, housing navigation, and drug rehabilitation options, among others.

Need and Gap Determination Process

The City determined the need for mental health care, housing navigation, and drug rehabilitation services through HMIS data and individual interviews with homeless individuals who are clients of the City's Homeless Outreach Team. The City also receives input and feedback from our various nonprofit and social service partners.

HOME-ARP Activities

Method(s)that will be used for soliciting applications

The City will issue a standard request for proposals (RFP) to solicit bids from qualified developers who want to construct affordable housing or complete affordable housing conversions in Chula Vista. The City will also release RFPs for qualified service providers once the units have been constructed or converted. The RFPs will be published in the City's public bid software, PlanetBids. The City's Finance Department's Procurement team will facilitate a

contractor selection process that will include a panel of subject experts who will each rank submitted bids on qualification and costs. Qualified bidders will then be interviewed to determine which bidder is preferred for project development.

Administration of eligible activities

The City of Chula Vista will oversee the administration of the permanent supportive housing project by a qualified contractor. Oversight will include monitoring compliance with program regulations for tenant selection and affordability restrictions as well as the availability of supportive services.

HOME-ARP funds administered by a subrecipient or contractor

The City of Chula Vista's HOME-ARP allocation will not be administered through a subrecipient.

Table 4: Use of HOME-ARP Funding

	Funding Amount	Percent of the Grant	Statutory Limit
Supportive Services			
Acquisition and Development of Non-Congregate Shelters			
Tenant Based Rental Assistance (TBRA)			
Development of Affordable Rental Housing	\$ 2,668,810.45	85%	
Non-Profit Operating			
Non-Profit Capacity Building			
Administration and Planning	\$ 470,966.55	15 %	15%
Total HOME ARP Allocation	\$ 3,139,777	100%	

HOME-ARP funds distribution

The City's gap analysis clearly demonstrates a need for affordable housing units and permanent supportive services for those experiencing or at risk of homelessness. Based on this demonstrated need, all funds will assist with the development of permanent supportive beds and affordable housing units. The City's needs assessment indicates that of the eligible HOME-ARP activities production and preservation of affordable housing is the most important. The City can leverage various other funding sources, such as ESG and CDBG, for supportive services and Tenant-Based Rental Assistance. Therefore, the City's intention is to use its full HOME-ARP allocation for production of affordable housing.

Plan rationale

The City's planned use of HOME-ARP funds is based on data and consultation feedback that strongly point to a need to address the lack of permanent supportive units and services in the

City. This is coupled with the large number of persons currently living in homelessness or at risk of homelessness in the City, which is expected to rise as the population of the City increases over the coming two decades. These factors indicate that the greatest need is for production of more affordable housing units. To assist the City with this goal, it was decided that HOME-ARP funds entirely be allocated to development or conversion of affordable housing units.

HOME-ARP Production Housing Goals

Number of affordable rental housing units for qualifying populations that Chula Vista expects to produce or support with its HOME-ARP allocation:

With HOME-ARP funding we would expect to obligate the development of approximately 18 units. With similar funding and leveraging opportunities recent developments have yielded approximately 90 affordable units.

Affordable rental housing production goal that the Chula Vista hopes to achieve and how the production goal will address the City's priority needs:

In the City's 2021-2029 Housing Element, Chula Vista established its affordable housing goals according to the Regional Housing Needs Assessment (RHNA). Of the 11,105 housing units the City needs to produce by 2029, 2,750 units are to be set aside for very-low-income households and 1,777 units need to be set aside for low-income households.

There are many projects and initiatives planned or currently underway in the City to help accomplish these goals, however there is a major need for gap financing when it comes to development and production of affordable housing. Units produced or converted with the use of HOME-ARP funds would directly contribute to this goal.

Preferences

The City of Chula Vista will intentionally not establish preferences as there is already a high need for low-barrier services for each of the qualifying populations. The City intends for units and associated wrap-around services developed with these funds to strictly be available to households currently experiencing homelessness, those at risk of homelessness, households fleeing domestic violence, and other qualifying populations. HOME-ARP funding will be used to provide gap-financing to facilitate the development of affordable units within affordable housing projects that also utilize other funding sources.

Referral Methods

The City of Chula Vista will work with the eventual on-site management and service provider to establish an internal chronological waiting list. The use of a waiting list better suits the needs of

the community and ensures that applicants are served on a first-come first-served basis instead of receiving referrals from a third-party agency.

Limitations

The City of Chula Vista will not be limiting the assistance provided under the development of permanent supportive housing to any one qualifying population. The services provided through this project will be made available to all applicants that fall under the eligible qualifying populations for HOME-ARP funding. The need in the Chula Vista community is too great to prevent a subpopulation from accessing resources they may desperately need.

HOME-ARP Refinancing Guidelines

The City of Chula Vista does not intend to use HOME-ARP funds to refinance existing debt.

HOME-ARP CERTIFICATIONS

In accordance with the applicable statutes and the regulations governing the consolidated plan regulations, the participating jurisdiction certifies that:

Affirmatively Further Fair Housing -- The jurisdiction will affirmatively further fair housing pursuant to 24 CFR 5.151 and 5.152.

Uniform Relocation Act and Anti-displacement and Relocation Plan --It will comply with the acquisition and relocation requirements of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, as amended, (42 U.S.C. 4601-4655) and implementing regulations at 49 CFR Part 24. It will comply with the acquisition and relocation requirements contained in the HOME-ARP Notice, including the revised one-for-one replacement requirements. It has in effect and is following a residential anti-displacement and relocation assistance plan required under 24 CFR Part 42, which incorporates the requirements of the HOME-ARP Notice. It will follow its residential anti-displacement and relocation assistance plan in connection with any activity assisted with funding under the HOME-ARP program.

Anti-Lobbying --To the best of the jurisdiction's knowledge and belief:

- 1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of it, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement;
- 2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, it will complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions; and
- 3. It will require that the language of paragraph 1 and 2 of this anti-lobbying certification be included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

Authority of Jurisdiction -- The consolidated plan is authorized under State and local law (as applicable) and the jurisdiction possesses the legal authority to carry out the programs for which it is seeking funding, in accordance with applicable HUD regulations and program requirements.

Section 3 --It will comply with section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968 (12 U.S.C. 1701u) and implementing regulations at 24 CFR Part 75.

HOME-ARP Certification --It will use HOME-ARP funds consistent with Section 3205 of the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (P.L. 117-2) and the CPD Notice: *Requirements for the Use of Funds in the HOME-American Rescue Plan Program*, as may be amended by HUD, for eligible activities and costs, including the HOME-ARP Notice requirements that activities are consistent with its accepted HOME-ARP allocation plan and that HOME-ARP funds will not be used for prohibited activities or costs, as described in the HOME-ARP Notice.

Signature of Authorized Official

 $\frac{2/1/2023}{\text{Date}}$

Title

OMB Number: 4040-0004 Expiration Date: 12/31/2022

Application for Federal A	Assistance SF-424				
* 1. Type of Submission:	* 2. Type of Application:	* If Revision, select appropriate letter(s):			
Preapplication	New New				
Application	Continuation	* Other (Specify):			
Changed/Corrected Appli	cation Revision				
* 3. Date Received:	4. Applicant Identifier:				
	M21-MP060505				
5a. Federal Entity Identifier:	. ,	5b. Federal Award Identifier:			
M21-MP060505					
State Use Only:					
6. Date Received by State:	7. State Application	n Identifier:			
8. APPLICANT INFORMATION	:				
* a. Legal Name: City of C	hula Vista				
* b. Employer/Taxpayer Identifica	ation Number (EIN/TIN):	* c. UEI:			
95-6000690		078726551000			
d. Address:					
* Street1: 276 Four	rth Avenue				
Street2:					
* City: Chula Vista					
County/Parish:					
* State: CA: Cal:	CA: California				
Province:					
* Country: USA: UNITED STATES					
* Zip / Postal Code: 91910-2631					
e. Organizational Unit:					
Department Name:		Division Name:			
Housing and Homeless Se	ervices				
f. Name and contact information of person to be contacted on matters involving this application:					
Prefix:	* First Nam	me: Mark			
Middle Name:					
* Last Name: Barnard					
Suffix:					
Title: Management Analyst					
Organizational Affiliation:					
*Telephone Number: 619-409-1976 Fax Number:					
* Email: mbarnard@chulavistaca.gov					

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424	
* 9. Type of Applicant 1: Select Applicant Type:	
C: City or Township Government	
Type of Applicant 2: Select Applicant Type:	
Type of Applicant 3: Select Applicant Type:	
* Other (specify):	
* 10. Name of Federal Agency:	
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development	
11. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance Number:	
14.239	
CFDA Title:	
HOME Investment Partnerships Program	
* 12. Funding Opportunity Number:	
CPD-21-10	
* Title:	
HOME-ARP Program	
	•
13. Competition Identification Number:	,
Title:	
14. Areas Affected by Project (Cities, Counties, States, etc.):	
Add Attachment Delate Attachment View Attachment	
* 15. Descriptive Title of Applicant's Project:	
HOME-ARP Allocation Plan	
Attach supporting documents as specified in agency instructions.	
Add Attachments Delete Attachments View Attachments	
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424			
16. Congressional Districts Of:			
* a. Applicant CA-052 * b. Program/Project CA-052			
Attach an additional list of Program/Project Congressional Districts if needed.			
Add Attachment Delete Attachment View Attachment			
17. Proposed Project:			
* a. Start Date: 03/31/2023 * b. End Date: 09/30/2030			
18. Estimated Funding (\$):			
* a. Federal 3,139,777.00			
* b. Applicant			
* c. State			
* d. Local			
* e. Other			
* f. Program Income			
*g. TOTAL 3,139,777.00			
* 19. Is Application Subject to Review By State Under Executive Order 12372 Process?			
a. This application was made available to the State under the Executive Order 12372 Process for review on			
b. Program is subject to E.O. 12372 but has not been selected by the State for review.			
C. Program is not covered by E.O. 12372.			
* 20. Is the Applicant Delinquent On Any Federal Debt? (If "Yes," provide explanation in attachment.)			
Yes No			
If "Yes", provide explanation and attach			
Add Attachment Delete Attachment View Attachment			
21. *By signing this application, I certify (1) to the statements contained in the list of certifications** and (2) that the statements herein are true, complete and accurate to the best of my knowledge. I also provide the required assurances** and agree to comply with any resulting terms if I accept an award. I am aware that any false, fictitious, or fraudulent statements or claims may subject me to criminal, civil, or administrative penalties. (U.S. Code, Title 18, Section 1001)			
▼ I AGREE			
** The list of certifications and assurances, or an internet site where you may obtain this list, is contained in the announcement or agency			
specific instructions.			
Authorized Representative:			
Prefix: Mrs. * First Name: Maria			
Middle Name: v.			
* Last Name: Kachadoorian			
Suffix:			
*Title: City Manager			
* Telephone Number: 619-691-5031 Fax Number:			
* Email: mkachadoorian@chulavistaca.gov			
* Signature of Authorized Representative: Waw V. Kauhed * Date Signed: 2/21/33			

OMB Number: 4040-0007 Expiration Date: 02/28/2025

ASSURANCES - NON-CONSTRUCTION PROGRAMS

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 15 minutes per response, including time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding the burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (0348-0040), Washington, DC 20503.

PLEASE DO NOT RETURN YOUR COMPLETED FORM TO THE OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET. SEND IT TO THE ADDRESS PROVIDED BY THE SPONSORING AGENCY.

NOTE:

Certain of these assurances may not be applicable to your project or program. If you have questions, please contact the awarding agency. Further, certain Federal awarding agencies may require applicants to certify to additional assurances. If such is the case, you will be notified.

As the duly authorized representative of the applicant, I certify that the applicant:

- Has the legal authority to apply for Federal assistance and the institutional, managerial and financial capability (including funds sufficient to pay the non-Federal share of project cost) to ensure proper planning, management and completion of the project described in this application.
- Will give the awarding agency, the Comptroller General of the United States and, if appropriate, the State, through any authorized representative, access to and the right to examine all records, books, papers, or documents related to the award; and will establish a proper accounting system in accordance with generally accepted accounting standards or agency directives.
- Will establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using their positions for a purpose that constitutes or presents the appearance of personal or organizational conflict of interest, or personal gain.
- Will initiate and complete the work within the applicable time frame after receipt of approval of the awarding agency.
- Will comply with the Intergovernmental Personnel Act of 1970 (42 U.S.C. §§4728-4763) relating to prescribed standards for merit systems for programs funded under one of the 19 statutes or regulations specified in Appendix A of OPM's Standards for a Merit System of Personnel Administration (5 C.F.R. 900, Subpart F).
- 6. Will comply with all Federal statutes relating to nondiscrimination. These include but are not limited to: (a) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352) which prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color or national origin; (b) Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C.§§1681-1683, and 1685-1686), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex; (c) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation

- Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. §794), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicaps; (d) the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U. S.C. §§6101-6107), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age; (e) the Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1972 (P.L. 92-255), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of drug abuse: (f) the Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and Rehabilitation Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-616), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of alcohol abuse or alcoholism; (g) §§523 and 527 of the Public Health Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C. §§290 dd-3 and 290 ee-3), as amended, relating to confidentiality of alcohol and drug abuse patient records; (h) Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. §§3601 et seq.), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination in the sale, rental or financing of housing; (i) any other nondiscrimination provisions in the specific statute(s) under which application for Federal assistance is being made; and, (i) the requirements of any other nondiscrimination statute(s) which may apply to the application.
- 7. Will comply, or has already complied, with the requirements of Titles II and III of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-646) which provide for fair and equitable treatment of persons displaced or whose property is acquired as a result of Federal or federally-assisted programs. These requirements apply to all interests in real property acquired for project purposes regardless of Federal participation in purchases.
- Will comply, as applicable, with provisions of the Hatch Act (5 U.S.C. §§1501-1508 and 7324-7328) which limit the political activities of employees whose principal employment activities are funded in whole or in part with Federal funds.

- Will comply, as applicable, with the provisions of the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. §§276a to 276a-7), the Copeland Act (40 U.S.C. §276c and 18 U.S.C. §874), and the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. §§327-333), regarding labor standards for federally-assisted construction subagreements.
- 10. Will comply, if applicable, with flood insurance purchase requirements of Section 102(a) of the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 (P.L. 93-234) which requires recipients in a special flood hazard area to participate in the program and to purchase flood insurance if the total cost of insurable construction and acquisition is \$10,000 or more.
- 11. Will comply with environmental standards which may be prescribed pursuant to the following: (a) institution of environmental quality control measures under the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (P.L. 91-190) and Executive Order (EO) 11514; (b) notification of violating facilities pursuant to EO 11738; (c) protection of wetlands pursuant to EO 11990; (d) evaluation of flood hazards in floodplains in accordance with EO 11988; (e) assurance of project consistency with the approved State management program developed under the Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972 (16 U.S.C. §§1451 et seq.); (f) conformity of Federal actions to State (Clean Air) Implementation Plans under Section 176(c) of the Clean Air Act of 1955, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§7401 et seq.); (g) protection of underground sources of drinking water under the Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974, as amended (P.L. 93-523); and, (h) protection of endangered species under the Endangered Species Act of 1973, as amended (P.L. 93-205).
- 12. Will comply with the Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 1968 (16 U.S.C. §§1271 et seq.) related to protecting components or potential components of the national wild and scenic rivers system.

- 13. Will assist the awarding agency in assuring compliance with Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended (16 U.S.C. §470), EO 11593 (identification and protection of historic properties), and the Archaeological and Historic Preservation Act of 1974 (16 U.S.C. §§469a-1 et seq.).
- 14. Will comply with P.L. 93-348 regarding the protection of human subjects involved in research, development, and related activities supported by this award of assistance.
- 15. Will comply with the Laboratory Animal Welfare Act of 1966 (P.L. 89-544, as amended, 7 U.S.C. §§2131 et seq.) pertaining to the care, handling, and treatment of warm blooded animals held for research, teaching, or other activities supported by this award of assistance.
- Will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. §§4801 et seq.) which prohibits the use of lead-based paint in construction or rehabilitation of residence structures.
- 17. Will cause to be performed the required financial and compliance audits in accordance with the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and OMB Circular No. A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations."
- Will comply with all applicable requirements of all other Federal laws, executive orders, regulations, and policies governing this program.
- 19. Will comply with the requirements of Section 106(g) of the Trafficking Victims Protection Act (TVPA) of 2000, as amended (22 U.S.C. 7104) which prohibits grant award recipients or a sub-recipient from (1) Engaging in severe forms of trafficking in persons during the period of time that the award is in effect (2) Procuring a commercial sex act during the period of time that the award is in effect or (3) Using forced labor in the performance of the award or subawards under the award.

SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED CERTIFYING OFFICIAL	TITLE
Mar V. Keerhade	City Manager
APPLICANT ORGANIZATION	DATE SUBMITTED
LCt, of Chula Vista	2/21/23

Standard Form 424B (Rev. 7-97) Back

ASSURANCES - CONSTRUCTION PROGRAMS

OMB Number: 4040-0009 Expiration Date: 02/28/2025

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 15 minutes per response, including time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding the burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (0348-0042), Washington, DC 20503.

PLEASE DO NOT RETURN YOUR COMPLETED FORM TO THE OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET. SEND IT TO THE ADDRESS PROVIDED BY THE SPONSORING AGENCY.

NOTE: Certain of these assurances may not be applicable to your project or program. If you have questions, please contact the Awarding Agency. Further, certain Federal assistance awarding agencies may require applicants to certify to additional assurances. If such is the case, you will be notified.

As the duly authorized representative of the applicant:, I certify that the applicant:

- Has the legal authority to apply for Federal assistance, and the institutional, managerial and financial capability (including funds sufficient to pay the non-Federal share of project costs) to ensure proper planning, management and completion of project described in this application.
- Will give the awarding agency, the Comptroller General
 of the United States and, if appropriate, the State,
 the right to examine all records, books, papers, or
 documents related to the assistance; and will establish
 a proper accounting system in accordance with
 generally accepted accounting standards or agency
 directives.
- 3. Will not dispose of, modify the use of, or change the terms of the real property title or other interest in the site and facilities without permission and instructions from the awarding agency. Will record the Federal awarding agency directives and will include a covenant in the title of real property acquired in whole or in part with Federal assistance funds to assure non-discrimination during the useful life of the project.
- Will comply with the requirements of the assistance awarding agency with regard to the drafting, review and approval of construction plans and specifications.
- Will provide and maintain competent and adequate engineering supervision at the construction site to ensure that the complete work conforms with the approved plans and specifications and will furnish progressive reports and such other information as may be required by the assistance awarding agency or State.
- Will initiate and complete the work within the applicable time frame after receipt of approval of the awarding agency.
- Will establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using their positions for a purpose that constitutes or presents the appearance of personal or organizational conflict of interest, or personal gain.

- Will comply with the Intergovernmental Personnel Act of 1970 (42 U.S.C. §§4728-4763) relating to prescribed standards of merit systems for programs funded under one of the 19 statutes or regulations specified in Appendix A of OPM's Standards for a Merit System of Personnel Administration (5 C.F.R. 900, Subpart F).
- Will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. §§4801 et seq.) which prohibits the use of lead-based paint in construction or rehabilitation of residence structures.
- Will comply with all Federal statutes relating to nondiscrimination. These include but are not limited to: (a) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352) which prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color or national origin; (b) Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. §§1681 1683, and 1685-1686), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex; (c) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29) U.S.C. §794), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicaps; (d) the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§6101-6107), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age: (e) the Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1972 (P.L. 92-255), as amended relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of drug abuse; (f) the Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and Rehabilitation Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-616), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of alcohol abuse or alcoholism; (g) §§523 and 527 of the Public Health Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C. §§290 dd-3 and 290 ee 3), as amended, relating to confidentiality of alcohol and drug abuse patient records; (h) Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. §§3601 et seq.), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination in the sale, rental or financing of housing; (i) any other nondiscrimination provisions in the specific statue(s) under which application for Federal assistance is being made; and (j) the requirements of any other nondiscrimination statue(s) which may apply to the application.

- 11. Will comply, or has already complied, with the requirements of Titles II and III of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-646) which provide for fair and equitable treatment of persons displaced or whose property is acquired as a result of Federal and federally-assisted programs. These requirements apply to all interests in real property acquired for project purposes regardless of Federal participation in purchases.
- 12. Will comply with the provisions of the Hatch Act (5 U.S.C. §§1501-1508 and 7324-7328) which limit the political activities of employees whose principal employment activities are funded in whole or in part with Federal funds.
- 13. Will comply, as applicable, with the provisions of the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. §§276a to 276a-7), the Copeland Act (40 U.S.C. §276c and 18 U.S.C. §874), and the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. §§327-333) regarding labor standards for federally-assisted construction subagreements.
- 14. Will comply with flood insurance purchase requirements of Section 102(a) of the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 (P.L. 93-234) which requires recipients in a special flood hazard area to participate in the program and to purchase flood insurance if the total cost of insurable construction and acquisition is \$10,000 or more.
- 15. Will comply with environmental standards which may be prescribed pursuant to the following: (a) institution of environmental quality control measures under the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (P.L. 91-190) and Executive Order (EO) 11514; (b) notification of violating facilities pursuant to EO 11738; (c) protection of wetlands pursuant to EO 11990; (d) evaluation of flood hazards in floodplains in accordance with EO 11988; (e) assurance of project consistency with the approved State management program developed under the Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972 (16 U.S.C. §§1451 et seq.); (f) conformity of

Federal actions to State (Clean Air) implementation Plans under Section 176(c) of the Clean Air Act of 1955, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§7401 et seq.); (g) protection of underground sources of drinking water under the Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974, as amended (P.L. 93-523); and, (h) protection of endangered species under the Endangered Species Act of 1973, as amended (P.L. 93-205).

- Will comply with the Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 1968 (16 U.S.C. §§1271 et seq.) related to protecting components or potential components of the national wild and scenic rivers system.
- 17. Will assist the awarding agency in assuring compliance with Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended (16 U.S.C. §470), EO 11593 (identification and protection of historic properties), and the Archaeological and Historic Preservation Act of 1974 (16 U.S.C. §§469a-1 et seq).
- 18. Will cause to be performed the required financial and compliance audits in accordance with the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and OMB Circular No. A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations."
- Will comply with all applicable requirements of all other Federal laws, executive orders, regulations, and policies governing this program.
- 20. Will comply with the requirements of Section 106(g) of the Trafficking Victims Protection Act (TVPA) of 2000, as amended (22 U.S.C. 7104) which prohibits grant award recipients or a sub-recipient from (1) Engaging in severe forms of trafficking in persons during the period of time that the award is in effect (2) Procuring a commercial sex act during the period of time that the award is in effect or (3) Using forced labor in the performance of the award or subawards under the award.

SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED CERTIFYING OFFICIAL	TITLE
Man V. Karhad	City manage
APPLICANT ORGANIZATION .	DATE SUBMITTED
Coty of Chula Vista	2/21/2023
()	SE 494D (Dov. 7.07) Book

SF-424D (Rev. 7-97) Back